STOCKSBRIDGE TOWN COUNCIL

Minutes of a Meeting of the Stocksbridge Town Council, held in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Stocksbridge, on Thursday, 14th September 2023

PRESENT: Cllr. M Whittaker (Chair); Cllrs. A S Law, K Davis, J Wood and J Staniforth from Item 109

5 members from the Upper Don Trail Trust – Minute No: 112

85. To Receive Chairman's Remarks and Apologies for Absence

Apologies for Absence were received from Cllrs. S Abrahams, R J Crowther and J A Grocutt. Cllr. J Staniforth would be arriving late.

86. Exclusion of the Press and Public

There were no items for exclusion of the press and public.

87. Declarations of Interest

There were no Declarations of Interest.

88. Public Questions and Petitions

There were no public questions and petitions.

89. <u>To Receive Remarks from the Minutes of the Town Council meeting held on 13th July 2023</u> There were no remarks from the minutes of the Town Council meeting held on 13th July 2023.

90. <u>To Approve as a True and Correct Record the Minutes of the Town Council meeting held on</u> 13th July 2023

Minutes of the Meeting of the Town Council held on 13th July 2023, copies of which had been circulated prior to the meeting were taken as read.

Proposed by Cllr. A S Law, seconded by Cllr. M Whittaker and

RESOLVED:- That the minutes be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

91. Finances - To Receive and Approve Monthly Financial Statements

The Clerk reported that the details of the Monthly Financial Statements had been previously circulated.

Proposed by Cllr. A S Law, seconded by Cllr. M Whittaker and

<u>RESOLVED</u>:- That the Town Council accept details of the Monthly Financial Statements for July and August 2023 as supplied by the Clerk.

92. Yorkshire Local Councils Associations

Correspondence including:-

- White Rose Update, 14th July
- White Rose Update, 31st July
- White Rose Update, 11th August

- White Rose Update, 25th August
- White Rose Update, 8th September Copies previously circulated.

93. STEP Business Centre

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from STEP Business Centre informing of an informal Networking Business Breakfast on 28th July. This correspondence had been circulated to tenants in the building.

94. Public Rights of Way

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from Public Rights of Way informing of an application to upgrade parts of Stocksbridge footpath 20 and 20a, known as Mucky Lane, to the status of bridleway based on historic documentary evidence. Copies of this correspondence had been previously circulated to members'.

The Clerk reported that she had received further correspondence from PROW enclosing more evidence to support the proposals following concerns raised by a Councillor. Copies of this correspondence had been previously circulated to members'.

Cllr.MW stated that this was an area of highly sensitive moorland, the most diverse in Yorkshire, with many rare animals and birds in situ which will be put under stress. It was a wet moorland, hence its name. Following further discussion it was felt that the current status of the PROW was unsuitable for horse traffic.

Proposed by Cllr. A S Law, seconded by Cllr. K Davis and

<u>RESOLVED</u>:- That the Town Council object to the proposals due to the current state of the PROW being unsuitable for horse traffic.

95. Penistone FM

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from Penistone FM Local Radio Community station confirming that they formally launched broadcasting into the Stocksbridge area on 1st August and thanking the Town Council for their support in the application process. Members of the Town Council had also received an invitation to visit Penistone FM on 19th October 2023. Copies of this correspondence had been previously circulated to members'.

96. South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority (SYMCA)

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from Oliver Coppard, South Yorkshire's Mayor regarding securing a fail deal for South Yorkshire bus funding, enclosing a copy of a letter to Mark Harper MP, Secretary of State for Transport. Copies of this correspondence had been previously circulated to members'.

97. Food Matters Development Project

The Clerk reported that she had received, via Cllr. JAG, a copy of the Food Matters Development Project Newsletter no.2, July 2023 regarding their urgent need to move the Food Bank to new premises at Cedar Road Christian Centre. This correspondence had been forwarded to all Councillors.

98. Streets Ahead

The Clerk reported that she had received a copy of the Streets Ahead Newsletters for July and September 2023. Copies of this correspondence had been previously circulated to members'.

99. Fairtrade Town

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from the Fairtrade Group informing that they were pleased to announce the application to renew the Fairtrade Town status for both Stocksbridge and Penistone had been successful.

The Town Council passed on their congratulations to the Fairtrade Group for achieving Fairtrade Town status once again.

100. Upper Don Arts Committee

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from the Upper Don Arts Committee thanking the Town Council for the grant towards the Homegrown Festival.

101. Friends of Fox Glen

The Clerk reported that she had received a card from Friends of Fox Glen children thanking the Town Council for assisting with making Fox Glen a lovely park.

102. Clerks & Councils Direct

The Clerk reported that she had received a copy of Clerks & Councils Direct, Issue 149, September 2023.

103. Upper Don Community Energy Limited

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from the Upper Don Community Energy group inviting members to attend the launch of the Community Warming Project on 21st September at St Ann's Church Hall, commencing at 6.30pm. Copies of this correspondence had been previously circulated to members'.

104. SYMCA

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from SYMCA informing of Mayor Oliver Coppard's campaigning for a fair funding deal for public transport in South Yorkshire. As part of this campaign, he is visiting some of the communities that have been hardest hit by service cuts and transport connectivity issues and is holding several public meetings. He will also be holding a series of virtual meetings for those unable to attend one of the in-person meetings, details of which had been previously circulated to Councillors.

105. Town Fund Board

The Clerk reported that she had received correspondence from A Holmes, Communications Officer, SCC which had been published in Look Local informing of decisions, specifically with respect to the Upper Don Trails project, one of ten projects across the Town that the Board was working to deliver alongside SCC. Copies of this correspondence had been previously circulated to members'.

106. Clerks Reports

The Clerk reported that she had attended a meeting regarding this year's Remembrance Day/Rededication of the Clock Tower together with the Chairman, representatives from the Royal British Legion, the History Society, Cllr. A Law and Cllr. J Ridler.

107. To Receive Verbal Reports from Members'

a) Cllr. ASL reported that he had attended the TARA Dog Show held in July and the TARA meeting held on 13th September.

14th September 2023 **Town Council Meeting**

b) Cllr. KD reported that he would be undertaking the upgrading of the plaque at the entrance to the Scout hut on Nanny Hill and also the upgrade of the kitchen facilities/DDA works at the Scout hut following the grant given by the Town Council.

c) In the absence of Cllr.SA the Chairman read out a report of events she had attended:-Bolsterstone Archaeological Group AGM will be held in October; SA participated in a walk around Midhope including St James Church; UDAC held its first AGM; the Homegrown Festival commences on 30th September; STEP continues to do well with members of the Board supporting the new staff; Friday Drop In still has a few spare places; Stocksbridge Community Care Group AGM was well attended and more volunteers are always welcome, despite social prescribing it was noted that GPs do not always refer people who would benefit from the service - this was to be followed up.

Cllr. SA was still dealing with residents concerns regarding certain breeds of dog, drug use, antisocial behaviour; lots of complaints regarding bus services, grass not being cut in community areas and litter, particularly in gennels. Could litter picks be organised this Autumn involving young people.

Cllr. SA noted that there continued to be lots of questions about the Towns Fund with residents at the West end of town angry that they were not consulted about the possible changes to walks around Underbank as they would be most affected by any changes. Cllr. SA had asked B Horsman to arrange a Community Forum where the community could be updated.

108. To Receive a Verbal Report from the Mayor

The Mayor, Cllr. M Whittaker reported that he had attended the following events since the last meeting:-

14th July – North LAC Chairs and Clerks meeting held at Ecclesfield Parish Council offices 21st July – Happy Hands leaving event

July – TARA Dog Show

Veterans Voice event held in Chapeltown

Launch of the Pack Horse Trails book held in Bolsterstone Village Hall

Library Towns Fund meeting with members of Walkers are Welcome

31st July – Greave House Farm Yorkshire Day Afternoon Tea event

1st August – Yorkshire Day Civic Celebration held at Rotherham and Wentworth Woodhouse 4th Sept – UDAC meeting

7th Sept – Remembrance Day meeting with representatives from the Royal British Legion, the History Society, Cllr. A Law and Cllr. J Ridler.

To Consider Planning Applications and receive the Decisions of the Sheffield Planning and 109. **Highways Committee**

22/03191/FUL	The Old Farm House, Briary	Drainage and surfacing improvements
	Busk Farm, Nice Acre Lane,	to land to form an exercise area for
		Horses, erection of a stable, provision
		of gabion basket walls and provision of
		a fenced area to be used as an
		equestrian menage.
23/02311/FUL	57 Newton Avenue, Stocksbridge	Demolition of side conservatory and
		erection of a two-storey side extension
		with single-storey front porch and

single-storey rear area, including a new pitched roof to the existing ground floor rear dining area.

23/02158/FUL	River Don, Deepcar (Grid Reference - SK 29468 98354)	Partial removal of weir to create fish Pass.
23/02688/FUL	54 Smithy Moor Avenue, Stocksbridge	Alterations to front garden to provide off-street parking for 2no. cars, alterations to include removal of front boundary wall, part excavation of front garden, erection of retaining walls with associated balustrade and provision of bin store.
23/02638/FUL	42 Smithy Moor Avenue, Stocksbridge	Demolition of existing rear off-shot, alterations to roof to form additional living accommodation to include hip to gable roof and erection of rear dormer extension with juliette balcony, alterations to fenestration including addition of first-floor rear julette balcony, erection of single-storey rear extension, part excavation of front garden and formation of retaining walls to provide off-street parking for 2no. cars.
23/02518/FUL	32 Maple Grove, Stocksbridge	Erection of single-storey rear extension to bungalow (retrospective).
23/02807/FUL	177 Woolley Road, Stocksbridge	Demolition of detached garage, Erection of two-storey side extension Including integral garage, single-storey front porch and single-storey rear extension to dwellinghouse (resubmission of planning application 23/01725/FUL).
23/02823/FUL	15 Bocking Hill, Stocksbridge	Erection of a two-storey side extension to dwellinghouse.

Cllr. J Staniforth arrived at this point of the meeting.

Planning Applications - Decisions

The undermentioned planning applications have been Granted Conditionally:-						
23/01506/FUL	Land to the rear of 16 Newton	Erection of 1no. dwellinghouse with				
	Avenue, Stocksbridge	integral garage.				
23/02038/NMA	Land at junction with Carr Road,	Application to amend the wording of				
	Hollin Busk Lane, Deepcar	the Affordable Housing Statement				
		(relating to planning approval				
		22/01978/REM).				
23/01619/ADV	2 Joseph Hayward House, 2 Fox	Erection of 1no. internally illuminated				
	Valley Way, Stocksbridge	fascia sign and 1no. non-illuminated				
		fascia sign - (resubmission of				
		application 22/02767/ADV).				

23/00705/FUL	Castle Inn, Yew Trees Lane, Bolsterstone	Provision of an open sided timber framed pergola, new festoon lighting, metal railings, and new wall to the
23/02098/TPO	Land at rear of 1 to 11 Edward Street, Stocksbridge	frontage along Stone Moor Road (Amended Plans 26.07.2023). Removal of trees (Tree Preservation Order No. 808/314) (G1).
23/01610/FUL	18 Carr Grove, Deepcar	Demolition of attached garage, erection of two-storey side extension including a garage and erection of front dormer
22/03191/FUL	The Old Farm House, Briery Busk Farm, Nine Acre Lane, Deepcar	to dwellinghouse. Retrospective development including drainage and surfacing improvements to land to form an exercise area for horses, erection of a stable, provision of gabion basket walls and provision of a fenced area to be used as an equestrian menage.
The undermentioned 19/00054/COND2	planning application has been given Land East of the River Don and to the South West of Station Road, Deepcar	Application Application Decided:- Application to approve details in relation to condition numbers 11. Surface Water Drainage, 12. Drainage Design, 13. Surface Water Disposal, 14. Drainage Basin, 16. Renewable/Low Carbon Energy, 17. Charging Points, 20. Badgers, 26. Cycle Parking, 28. Highways, 29. Driveway Surface, 30. Cycle ways, 32. Barriers, 33. Sound Insulation Works, 38. Large Scale Details, 39. Substation, and 40. Stone Wall; Relating to
19/00054/COND3	Land East of the River Don and to the South West of Station Road, Deepcar	planning permission 19/00054/FUL. Application to approve details in relation to condition number(s): 10 (Cycle/Footway adjacent Plot 315), 21 (Promotion of Biodiversity and Ecology), 22 (Excavations), 23 (Planting Scheme), 25 (Vehicle Cleaning), 27 (Highway Improvements), 31 (Phasing Plan), 37 (Access Control Barrier) and 41 (Biodiversity Management Plan) imposed by planning permission 19/00054/FUL.
19/00054/COND4	Land East of the River Don and to the South West of Station Road, Deepcar	Application to approve details in relation to condition number(s): 15. (SUDs maintenance) 18. (employment & development plan) & 24. (travel plan) imposed by planning permission

		19/00054/FUL.
17/04673/COND5	Land at junction with Carr Road, Hollin Busk Lane, Deepcar	Application to approve details in relation to condition nos. 14 (CEMP), 15 (Construction Method Statement) and 17 (remediation works) imposed
17/04673/COND6	Land at junction with Carr Road,	by planning permission 17/04673/OUT. Application to approve details in
	Hollin Busk Lane, Deepcar	relation to condition nos. 7 (Levels), 9 (Arboricultural Method Statement) and 12 (Surface Water Drainage) as imposed by planning permission 17/04673/OUT.
17/04673/COND8	Land at junction with Carr Road, Hollin Busk Lane, Deepcar	Application to approve details in relation to condition no. 19. Inclusive Employment and Development Plan relating to planning permission 17/04673/OUT.
17/04673/COND10	Land at junction with Carr Road, Hollin Busk Lane, Deepcar	Application to approve details in relation to condition no(s) 25. Dry Stone Walling; Relating to planning permission 17/04673/OUT).
21/04262/COND2	Land associated with Ingfield House, 11 Bocking Hill, Stocksbridge	Application to approve details in relation to condition numbers: 13 (Hard Surfaced Areas), 16 (Remediation), 18 (Hard & Soft Landscaping), 19 (Boundary Treatment), 21 (Meter Boxes) and 23 (Large Scale Details) imposed by planning permission 21/04262/FUL.
21/04262/COND3	Ingfield House, 11 Bocking Hill, Stocksbridge	Application to approve details in relation to condition nos 3. Existing Surface Water Drainage Upstream, 4. Proposed Surface Water Drainage, 8. Drainage Arrangements, 12. Lifetime Maintenance of Drainage, 22. Material Sample Panel, 25. Retaining Wall Details, 26. Surface Water Drainage, 27. Ecology and Management; Relating to planning permission 21/04262/FUL.
The undermentioned 22/00491/OUT	planning applications have been Gr 9 - 11 Wood Royd Road, Deepcar	canted Conditionally Legal Agreement:- Outline planning application (all matters reserved except for access) for the partial demolition of the western gable of former farmhouse, retention of 2-storey barn, demolition of single- storey ancillary buildings, erection of up to 41 dwellinghouses, formation of vehicular access point and provision of

22/04337/FUL

Land East of the River Don and to the South West of Station

Road, Deepcar

open space and landscape buffer (Resubmission of application 19/03890/OUT).

Amendments to house types and plot layout, and construction of a retaining wall (Application under Section 73 to vary condition 2 (Approved plans) of planning permission no. 19/00054/FUL (Erection of 428 dwellings with associated infrastructure including means of access, all-purpose bridge, drainage, open space and landscaping works)).

The undermentioned planning application has been Refused with Enforcement Action:-Erection of 2No detached

23/01241/FUL Land adjacent 22 Belmont Drive,

Stocksbridge dwellinghouses.

The undermentioned planning application has been Refused:-

177 Woolley Road, Stocksbridge 23/01725/FUL

Demolition of detached garage, erection of two-storey side extension including integral garage, single-storey front porch and single-storey rear extension to dwellinghouse.

The undermentioned planning application has been granted Certificate of Lawful Use

Development:-

23/02064/LD2 Woodlands 8 Belmont Drive,

Stocksbridge

Application for Lawful Development Certificate for the demolition of conservatory and erection of a singlestorey side extension to dwellinghouse (Application under Section 192).

Recreation and Environment Committee Members discussed Minutes of the Meeting of the 110. Recreation and Environment Committee of the Town Council held on 5th September 2023, copies of which had been previously circulated.

Proposed by Cllr. A S Law, seconded by Cllr. K Davis and

RESOLVED:- (i) That the minutes of the Recreation and Environment Committee be accepted. (ii) That the Town Council support the proposal to include Stocksbridge Clock Tower in the South Yorkshire Heritage List.

Finance Committee Members discussed Minutes of the Meeting of the Finance Committee of 111. the Town Council, held on 5th September 2023, copies of which had been previously circulated. Proposed by Cllr. J Staniforth, seconded by Cllr. J Wood and RESOLVED:- (i) That the minutes of the Finance Committee be accepted.

112. Town Deal Trails Project

The Chairman welcomed members of the Upper Don Trail Trust (UDTT) who wished to raise their concerns regarding the decision of the Towns Fund Board with regard to the Town Deal Trails Project, copies of correspondence from the group and A Holmes, Communications Officer, SCC had been previously circulated to members.

The Chairman stated that both Stocksbridge Town Council and Bradfield Parish Council had been involved in the consultation process from the beginning but noted that the Town Council had no direct power over the Towns Fund Board and queried what the UDTT hoped to achieve from this meeting.

T Bagshaw noted his involvement as a former Councillor in the Sustrans discussions and also as a founder member of the UDTT, working together with SCC to facilitate improvement of walks within the Valley.

M Corrigan, British Horse Society informed of his involvement with Highways, BMBC etc, and surprise when the project stalled.

T Hutton, local resident and trustee of UDTT noted the optimism of the group at obtaining funds from the Towns Board for the project and the huge support from residents, particularly with traffic increasing daily and more housing developments underway.

C Prescott, member of Stocksbridge Walkers are Welcome, Bradfield Parish Council Walkers are Welcome and UDTT.

S Ogden circulated correspondence and a map detailing the Sustrans proposals, noting updates at Wharncliffe Woods and Bloors development. In June 2022 UDTT were informed that the project had been within budget and locked down. Shortly thereafter they were informed that it would not be happening, with no further information forthcoming despite several attempts at contact.

UDTT understand that there are budget constraints but do not understand why the project has been stopped or the lack of consultation. The Board have announced an alternative project which does not contribute to active travel or connect to the trail.

UDTT are requesting transparency and to explore the way forward and ask that Stocksbridge Town Council use its influence to obtain consultation and information for the group and members of the public.

SO queried whether the Town Council was comfortable with what was happening on the Towns Fund Board, it was not right the way business was being conducted. Could the Town Council open up discussions as to why the Towns Fund Board have chosen the Underbank link and not others and facilitate talks to take the project forward. The bridge at Holme Farm was unreal but there was an opportunity to add funds to go into the project.

Cllr. MW stated that Cllr. JAG had been Chairman when the Sustrans project commenced and he had huge respect for her. Cllr. JAG was an esteemed colleague who had always supported the UDTT.

Cllr. KD stated that Cllr. JAG was a very avid member of the Town Council and suggested that the points made by UDTT be taken to the Towns Fund Board.

SO stated that the Towns Fund Board should be consulting with the Town Council as a stakeholder.

Cllr. JS stated that the Town Fund Board should be asked why the project had been paused, how the decision had been taken, evidence to support the decision and noting the disappointment of the public that the project had been abandoned.

Cllr. KD referred to paragraph 4 of the letter supplied by A Holmes which had been in Look Local which he felt required clarity and evidence as to why this decision had been taken.

Cllr. JW noted the rumours circulating within the Valley with residents, stating that the public should be kept informed of progress on a regular basis.

The Clerk noted that A Holmes was to attend a future Town Council meeting once there was more information on planning applications to report.

SO stated that Howard Vans also needed to be invited to attend.

The Chairman stated that the Town Council, as a statutory consultee, would raise these points with the Towns Fund Board and request transparency/clarity and evidence to support the decisions made which would be made available to the UDTT.

M Corrigan stated that as a statutory consultee the British Horse Society had not been informed, and neither had Sustrans.

SO advised that not all meetings of the Towns Fund Board were minuted and requested that they be asked to publish minutes in a more timely manner.

The Chairman thanked members of the UDTT for attending the meeting.

113. <u>Annual Accounts 2022/2023</u>

The Clerk informed that she had received the opinion of the Auditors for the Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2023, there were no matters arising. The Clerk noted that the required documents were currently on display on the Town Council notice board and website.

Proposed by Cllr. K Davis, seconded by Cllr. A S Law and

RESOLVED:- That the Town Council accept the Auditors certificate and opinion.

114. Accounts for Authorisation

Proposed by Cllr. A S Law, seconded by Cllr. J Staniforth and

RESOLVED:- (i) That payments be authorised in settlement of the undermentioned accounts:-

				Made Under Power			
Salaries/Tax/NI/Pensions	August 2023	£3	655.90	LGA72(S111)			
Salaries/Tax/NI/Pensions	September 2023	£3	655.90	LGA72(S111)			
PKF Littlejohn LLP	External Audit charges	£	756.00	"			
Rotherham Borough Council	Yorkshire Day	£	110.00	"			
Mr R Brown	Toilet cleaning cover	£	42.48	LGA72(Sch14P9)			
Upper Don Arts Community	Grant Aid	£	500.00	LGA72(S19)			
Stocksbridge Cricket Club	Grant Aid	£1	00.000	"			
Steel Valley Beacon Arts	Grant Aid	£1	00.000	66			
(ii)That payments be authorised in settlement of the undermentioned accounts in respect of The							
ARC:-				Made Under Power			
Pollards Wholesale Ltd	Coffee supplies	£	46.45	LGA72(S111)			
Elite Lift Solutions Ltd	Lift Service contract	£	388.80	"			
NRC Services Ltd	Cleaning charges – Aug	£	870.62	"			
Viking	Refreshments	£	6.49	"			
IPM Group Ltd	Security call-outs	£	216.00	"			
Firths	Window cleaning – Sept	£	60.00	"			
(iii) That authority be given for payments made in between meetings in settlement of the							

(iii) That authority be given for payments made in between meetings in settlement of the undermentioned accounts:-

Stocksbridge Town Council			Made Under Power
Facility Maintenance Solutions	Water monitoring – Jul	£	10.30 LGA72(S111)
Facility Maintenance Solutions	Water monitoring – Aug	£	10.30 "
ARC Management			
IPM Group Ltd	Security call-out	£	54.00 "
Micro Alarms Ltd	Reset to alarm system	£	83.94 "
Copymark (Service) Ltd	Photocopying charges	£	10.07 "
Facility Maintenance Solutions	Water monitoring – Jul	£	20.60 LGA72(Sch14P9)
Facility Maintenance Solutions	Repairs to office door	£	128.75 LGA72(S111)
Micro Alarms Ltd	Service/repair to alarm	£	207.54 "
Record UK	Service charges – auto door	£	246.00 "
Firths	Window cleaning – Aug	£	60.00 "
Viking	Wall Projector	£	140.40 "
Culligan (UK) Ltd	Water cooler charges	£	128.85 "
	_		

NRC Services Ltd	Cleaning charges – Jul	£	824.48	"
Copymark (Service) Ltd	Photocopying charges	£	9.50	"
Facility Maintenance Solutions	Water monitoring – Aug	£	20.60	LGA72(Sch14P9)
(iv) That authority be given for Div		of		•
accounts:-	•			
July 2023:-				
Sheffield City Council	Business Rates-Toilets	£	57.00	LGA72(S111)
Sheffield City Council	Business Rates-ARC	£	550.00	"
Sheffield City Council	Business Rates-History Soc	£	42.00	44
Business Stream	Water Charges – ARC		465.94	"
SSE	Elec charges – ARC – Jun	£	1022.86	"
Public Works Loan Board	Loan repayment	£	3379.37	"
Moorepay	Payroll charges	£	84.47	"
Intuit Ltd – Quickbooks	VAT software subscription	£	16.80	"
Veolia	Waste removal		124.92	"
August 2023:-				
Sheffield City Council	Business Rates-Toilets	£	57.00	LGA72(S111)
Sheffield City Council	Business Rates-ARC	£	550.00	"
Sheffield City Council	Business Rates-History Soc	£	42.00	"
SSE	Electricity - ARC - Jul	\mathfrak{L}	1048.56	"
Societe Generale	Photocopier Lease	£	194.40	"
British Telecommunications plc	Broadband	£	183.24	"
British Telecommunications plc	EMCS Line	£	43.16	"
British Telecommunications plc	Phone Charges	£	145.81	"
Information Commissioners	Annual subscription	£	35.00	"
Moorepay	Payroll charges	£	80.62	"
Intuit Ltd – Quickbooks	VAT software subscription	£	16.80	"
Veolia	Waste removal	£	101.87	66

Chairman